

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Forty-ninth Legislative Assembly

* * * * *

SEVENTEENTH DAY

Bismarck, January 30, 1985

The House convened at 1:00 p.m., with Speaker R. Hausauer presiding.

The prayer was offered by Reverend Robert Lynne, Good Shepherd Lutheran Church, Bismarck, North Dakota.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called and all Representatives were present, except Representatives Gullickson, Lipsiea, and Vander Vorst.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

REVISION AND CORRECTION OF THE JOURNAL

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Revision and Correction of the Journal has carefully examined the Journal of the Sixteenth Day and finds the same to be correct.

REP. KENT, Chairman

REP. MYRDAL MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

SENATE CHAMBER

MR. SPEAKER: I have the honor to transmit herewith the following which the Senate has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on:

SB 2084, SB 2085, SB 2183, SB 2250, SB 2253, SB 2292,
SB 2293, SCR 4003

LEO LEIDHOLM, Secretary

SENATE CHAMBER

MR. SPEAKER: I have the honor to return herewith the following which the Senate has passed unchanged:

HB 1074, HB 1106

LEO LEIDHOLM, Secretary

SENATE CHAMBER

MR. SPEAKER: I have the honor to return herewith the following which the President has signed:

HCR 3033

LEO LEIDHOLM, Secretary

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE
HOUSE CHAMBER

MADAM PRESIDENT: I have the honor to transmit herewith the following which the House has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on:

HB 1005, HB 1026, HB 1040, HB 1128, HB 1204, HB 1217,
HB 1236, HB 1246, HB 1247, HB 1252, HB 1253, HB 1256,
HB 1260, HB 1263, HB 1264

ROY GILBREATH, Chief Clerk

REPORT OF PROCEDURAL COMMITTEE

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Enrollment and Engrossment respectfully report that they have examined the following bills and find the same correctly engrossed:

HB 1067, HB 1071, HB 1101

REP. HEDSTROM, Chairman

REP. DORSO MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REPORT OF PROCEDURAL COMMITTEE

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Enrollment and Engrossment respectfully report that the following bill was delivered to the Secretary of State for his filing at the hour of 1:18 p.m., January 30, 1985:

HCR 3033

REP. HEDSTROM, Chairman

REP. SHAW MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

REP. A. HAUSAUER MOVED that the amendments to HB 1081 as recommended by the Committee on Finance and Taxation as printed on pages 428-432 of the House Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends that HB 1081 DO PASS.

REQUEST

REP. HOFFNER REQUESTED that the question of the adoption of the amendments to HB 1081 be divided to have the sections voted on separately in the following manner, which request was granted as per Rule 316, which states that the Division of the Question must be supported by twelve members.

DIVISION A

On page 1, line 1, after the comma insert the numerals "57-55-02,"

On page 1, line 4, delete the words "decals; and to repeal section 57-55-02 of the North Dakota"

On page 1, delete line 5

On page 1, line 6, delete the word "decals" and insert in lieu thereof the word "permits"

On page 1, line 17, remove the overstrike over the words "~~Upon payment of the tax to the county treasurer, a~~"

On page 1, line 18, remove the overstrike over the words "~~mobile home tax~~", after the word "~~decals~~" insert the word "permit", and remove the overstrike over the words "~~shall be issued to the owner of the mobile~~"

On page 1, line 19, remove the overstrike over the word "~~home-~~" and delete the words "The owner shall include with the application a promise to pay"

On page 1, delete lines 20 and 21

On page 1, line 22, delete the words "issue a mobile home tax decal to the owner of the mobile home."

On page 1, after line 25, insert the following new section:

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 57-55-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

57-55-02. Application for taxing - Form - Contents. No mobile home tax ~~decals~~ permit shall be issued unless the owner files an application with the director of tax equalization and pays the tax and any penalties in full to the county treasurer. Application shall be made on forms prescribed by the state tax commissioner, furnished by the county director of tax equalization, and shall contain the necessary information to carry out the provisions of this chapter."

On page 2, line 3, remove the overstrike over the word "~~The~~", delete the words "A property" and "on mobile homes is", and remove the overstrike over the words "in this"

On page 2, line 4, remove the overstrike over the words "~~chapter shall become~~" and delete the words "and is"

On page 2, line 5, remove the overstrike

On page 2, line 6, remove the overstrike over the words "~~purchased or first moved into this state~~" and delete the words "first of the year"

On page 2, line 7, delete the words "following the year for which the taxes were levied"

On page 3, line 23, remove the overstrike over the comma

On page 3, line 24, remove the overstrike over the words "~~and a tax~~", after the word "~~deeat~~" insert the word "permit", remove the overstrike over the words "~~has not been previously issued~~", after the word "~~en~~" insert the word "for", and remove the overstrike over the words "~~such mobile home~~"

On page 3, line 25, remove the overstrike over the words "~~in this state for such year~~"

On page 4, delete lines 8 through 24

And renumber the lines, sections, and pages accordingly

DIVISION B

On page 1, line 2, after the numerals "57-55-04," insert the numerals "57-55-05," after the numerals "57-55-06," insert the words and numerals "57-55-07, subsection 1 of section 57-55-10," and delete the numerals "57-55-12" and insert in lieu thereof the words "subsection 2 of section 57-55-11"

On page 1, line 13, overstrike the word "decal" and insert immediately thereafter the word "permit"

On page 1, line 23, overstrike the word "decal" and after the word "~~be~~" insert the word "permit"

On page 2, line 1, delete the words "Lien on mobile"

On page 2, line 2, delete the word "home -"

On page 3, delete lines 7 through 10 and insert in lieu thereof the following:

"3. Sections 51-07-11 and 57-22-18 do not apply to the tax levied under this chapter."

On page 3, after line 32, insert the following new section:

"SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 57-55-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

57-55-05. Taxes in lieu of other property taxes. The taxes provided for in this chapter shall be in lieu of all property taxes upon such mobile homes for the calendar year for which the tax ~~decal~~ permit is valid. However, such taxes shall in no way be construed as exempting any mobile homeowner from the requirements of registering such mobile home with the registrar of motor vehicles or securing license plates entitling such mobile home to be hauled upon the state's highways pursuant to section 39-18-03."

On page 4, line 1, overstrike the word "decals" and insert immediately thereafter the word "permits", overstrike the word "decal", and after the word "~~shall~~" insert the word "permit"

On page 4, line 2, overstrike the words "decal type and"

On page 4, line 4, overstrike the first word "decals" and insert immediately thereafter the word "permits" and overstrike the second word "decals"

On page 4, line 5, after the word "~~shall~~" insert the word "permits"

On page 4, after line 7, insert the following new sections:

"SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 57-55-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

57-55-07. Failure to make application or to display ~~decal~~ apply for permit - Illegal use of ~~decal~~ permit - Penalty. Any person who fails to make application pursuant to the provisions of this chapter, or who shall use or allow to be used a tax ~~decal~~ permit of any mobile home taxed pursuant to the provisions of this chapter for any purpose other than the purpose for which it was issued, ~~or who fails to attach such decal pursuant to the provisions of this chapter,~~ shall be is guilty of a class B misdemeanor.

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-55-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

1. A mobile home described in this subsection to the extent herein limited is exempt from taxation under this chapter; provided, that the mobile

home shall have ~~displayed on it~~ a tax ~~decal~~ permit as provided in section 57-55-06:

- a. If it is owned and used as living quarters of a military person on active military duty in this state who is a resident of another state.
- b. If it is owned and occupied by a welfare recipient, provided the mobile home is not permanently attached to the land and classified as real property. For the purposes of this subdivision, "welfare recipient" means any person who is certified to the county director of tax equalization by the county social service board as receiving the major portion of income from any state or federal public assistance program.
- c. If it is owned and used as living quarters by a disabled veteran or unremarried surviving spouse who meets the requirements of subsection 20 of section 57-02-08.
- d. If it is owned and used as the living quarters for a blind person who meets the requirements of subsection 22 of section 57-02-08.
- e. If it is owned and used by a person who uses it as living quarters and who qualifies for the homestead credit provided in section 57-02-08.1, and the mobile home shall be regarded for the purposes of this exemption as the homestead of the person claiming the exemption.

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 57-55-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

2. Before a mobile home is moved from its existing location, the owner must have a current year's mobile home ~~decal displayed thereon or must display on the mobile home during transport~~ permit and a tax release statement obtained from the county director of tax equalization indicating that all taxes, penalties, and interest levied against the mobile home have been paid. A violation of this provision shall constitute an infraction, but the minimum penalty shall be one hundred dollars."

And renumber the lines, sections, and pages accordingly

REQUEST

REP. HOFFNER REQUESTED a recorded roll call vote on the motion to adopt the Division A amendments to HB 1081, which request was granted.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the motion to adopt the Division A amendments to HB 1081, the roll was called and there were 54 YEAS, 49 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; Dorso; Gates; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Hamerlik; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hughes; Kelly; Kent; Kloubec; Koland; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Larson; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Martinson; Meyer; Moore; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Olson, A.; Payne; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Unhjem; Wald; Wentz; Whalen; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: Brokaw; DeMers; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gerntholz; Halmrast; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Hill; Hoffner; Keller; Kingsbury; Klundt; Knudson; Lang; Laughlin; Lloyd; Martin; Melby; Mertens; Murphy; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Pederson, R.; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Shaw; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Ulmer; Watne; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Vander Vorst

The motion to adopt the Division A amendments to HB 1081 prevailed.

The question being on the motion to adopt the Division B amendments to HB 1081.

The motion to adopt the Division B amendments to HB 1081 prevailed.

The question then was on the adoption of the amendments to HB 1081, including Division A, and including Division B, with lines, sections, and pages renumbered accordingly.

The proposed amendments to HB 1081, including Divisions A and B to HB 1081, were adopted.

HB 1081 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

REP. HAUGLAND **MOVED** that the amendments to HB 1104 as recommended by the **Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs** as printed on page 473 of the House Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends that HB 1104 DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

HB 1104 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

REP. KLOUBEC **MOVED** that the amendments to HB 1122 as recommended by the **Committee on Industry, Business and Labor** as printed on page 474 of the House Journal be adopted, and when so amended, recommends that HB 1122 DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

HB 1122 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

REP. HAUGLAND **MOVED** that the amendments to HB 1168 as recommended by the **Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs** as printed on pages 474-475 of the House Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends that HB 1168 DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

HB 1168 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

REP. HAUGLAND **MOVED** that the amendments to HB 1195 as recommended by the **Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs** as printed on page 475 of the House Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends that HB 1195 DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

HB 1195 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

REP. HAUGLAND **MOVED** that the amendments to HB 1221 as recommended by the **Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs** as printed on pages 475-476 of the House Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends that HB 1221 DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

HB 1221 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

REP. KLOUBEC **MOVED** that the amendments to HB 1245 as recommended by the **Committee on Industry, Business and Labor** as printed on pages 476-477 of the House Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends that HB 1245 DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

HB 1245 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

REP. KNUDSON MOVED that the amendments to HB 1257 as recommended by the Committee on Education as printed on page 477 of the House Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends that HB 1257 DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

HB 1257 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

REP. A. HAUSAUER MOVED that the amendments to HB 1300 as recommended by the Committee on Finance and Taxation as printed on page 478 of the House Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends that HB 1300 DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

HB 1300 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MOTION

REP. NICHOLAS MOVED that HB 1445 be returned to the House floor from the Committee on Agriculture, which motion prevailed.

REQUEST

REP. RETZER REQUESTED the unanimous consent of the House to withdraw HB 1445. There being no objection, it was so ordered by the Speaker.

MOTION

REP. A. OLSON MOVED that HB 1556 be returned to the House floor from the Committee on Natural Resources and be rereferred to the Committee on Transportation, which motion prevailed.

SPEAKER R. HAUSAUER ANNOUNCED that HB 1556 was rereferred to the Committee on Transportation.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HB 1067: A BILL for an Act to create and enact five new sections to chapter 10-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of nonprofit organizations, exemptions from the corporate farm prohibition, and required divestiture; and to amend and reenact sections 10-06-04.1, 10-06-07, and 10-06-07.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the corporations allowed to farm or ranch, an income limitation on nonfarm activities of corporate farms, and initial report requirements.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 75 YEAS, 28 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, R.; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hughes; Keller; Kent; Kloubec; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Lautenschlager; Lindgren; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Payne; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Riley; Rydell; Schmidt; Schneider; Shaw; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, R.; Starke; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Wald; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: Berg, G.; Brokaw; Enget; Graba; Hanson, L.; Hill; Hoffner; Kelly; Kingsbury; Klundt; Laughlin; Linderman; Lloyd; Mertens; Meyer; Oban; O'Connell; Opedahl; O'Shea; Pederson, R.; Richard; Riehl; Sauter; Schindler; Solberg, O.; Stofferahn; Watne; Williams, W.

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Vander Vorst

HB 1067 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1071: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 20.1-01-26 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to suspension of hunting, trapping, or fishing privileges.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 101 YEAS, 1 NAY, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens;

Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Schneider; Shaw; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: Stofferahn

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Conmy; Gullickson; Lipsiea; Vander Vorst

HB 1071 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1101: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 39-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to rules of the road regarding roads closed for public safety because of hazardous conditions; to amend and reenact paragraph 17 of subdivision a of subsection 3 of section 39-06.1-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the penalty for disobeying traffic control devices; and to declare an emergency.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 86 YEAS, 14 NAYS, 6 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, R.; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; Olsen, D.; Olson, V.; Payne; Pederson, R.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schneider; Shaw; Shide; Smette; Solberg, O.; Starke; Stofferahn; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Wald; Wentz; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: Berg, G.; Brokaw; Hanson, O.; Kingsbury; Linderman;
O'Connell; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Schmidt;
Shockman; Skjerven; Solberg, R.; Watne

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Peterson, J.;
Riley; Vander Vorst; Whalen

HB 1101 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause carried.

MOTIONS

REP. STRINDEN MOVED that HB 1215 be laid over one legislative day, which motion prevailed.

REP. KRETSCHMAR MOVED that the House waive the reading of the title to HB 1147, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HB 1147: A BILL for an Act to adopt the Uniform Residential Landlord and Tenant Act and to create and enact a new section to chapter 47-16, relating to landlord-tenant relationships under rental agreements for residential purposes, and the scope of chapter 47-16; to amend and reenact sections 32-03-27, 32-03-28, 32-03-29, 33-06-01, 33-06-04, 47-16-07, 47-16-07.1, 47-16-07.2, 47-16-07.4, 47-16-15, 47-16-17, and 47-16-20 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to real estate leases, damages, and payment of rent; and to repeal sections 47-16-07.3, 47-16-13.1, 47-16-13.2, 47-16-13.3, 47-16-13.4, 47-16-13.5, 47-16-13.6, and 47-16-19 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to residential real estate leases and measures of damage.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 13 YEAS, 88 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: DeMers; Hoffner; Kelly; Oban; O'Shea; Rice; Sauter;
Schindler; Schneider; Solberg, O.; Starke; Unhjem;
Winkelman

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.;
Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; Dorso;
Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz;
Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.;
Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill;
Hughes; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Klundt;

Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; Payne; Pederson, R.; Retzer; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Schmidt; Shaw; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, R.; Stofferahn; Thompson; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Wald; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Peterson, J.; Strinden; Vander Vorst

HB 1147 was declared lost.

HB 1266: A BILL for an Act to provide disciplinary procedures for students enrolled in approved alternative education programs; and to amend and reenact subsection 13 of section 15-29-08 and section 15-40.1-07.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the discipline of students.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 98 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, G.; Berg, R.; Brokaw; Cleveland; Conmy; Dalrymple; DeMers; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hill; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Koland; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Myrdal; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Payne; Pederson, R.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Sauter; Schindler; Schmidt; Shaw; Shide; Shockman; Skjerven; Smette; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Starke; Stofferahn; Strinden; Timm; Tollefson; Ulmer; Unhjem; Wald; Watne; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: Hamerlik; Schneider; Thompson; Wentz

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Peterson, J.; Vander Vorst

HB 1266 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTIONS

REP. KLOUBEC MOVED that the House reconsider its action whereby HB 1148 was passed, which motion prevailed.

REP. STRINDEN MOVED that HB 1148 be laid over one legislative day, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1272: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 15-47-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the earliest opening date for elementary and secondary public schools.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO NOT PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 53 YEAS, 50 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Berg, G.; Brokaw; Conmy; Dorso; Dotzenrod; Eckroth; Enget; Goetz; Graba; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hanson, L.; Haugland; Hausauer, A.; Hedstrom; Hoffner; Hughes; Keller; Kelly; Kent; Kingsbury; Koland; Kuchera; Linderman; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Myrdal; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Oban; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Payne; Pederson, R.; Peterson, J.; Retzer; Richard; Sauter; Schneider; Shockman; Solberg, O.; Solberg, R.; Stofferahn; Thompson; Timm; Ulmer; Unhjem; Wald; Whalen; Winkelman; Wold; Speaker Hausauer, R.

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Belter; Berg, R.; Cleveland; Dalrymple; DeMers; Frey; Gates; Gerntholz; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Hill; Kloubec; Klundt; Knudson; Kretschmar; Lang; Larson; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Lindgren; Lloyd; Martin; Meyer; Moore; Murphy; Nalewaja; O'Connell; Olson, V.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Rice; Riehl; Riley; Rydell; Schindler; Schmidt; Shaw; Shide; Skjerven; Smette; Starke; Strinden; Tollefson; Watne; Wentz; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gullickson; Lipsiea; Vander Vorst

HB 1272 was declared lost for want of a Constitutional majority.

RECOGNITION

THE SPEAKER ANNOUNCED that a former Representative was in the chambers, and requested that the House recognize former Representative Jean Rayl, and Representative Rayl was thereupon introduced to the House.

THE SPEAKER ANNOUNCED that a former Representative was in the chambers, and requested that the House recognize former Representative Warren Schuett, and Representative Schuett was thereupon introduced to the House.

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE
SENATE CHAMBER

MR. SPEAKER: I have the honor to inform you that the Senate has adopted the conference committee report on SCR 4029.

LEO LEIDHOLM, Secretary

REPORT OF PROCEDURAL COMMITTEE

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Enrollment and Engrossment respectfully report that they have examined the following bills and find the same correctly enrolled:

HB 1060, HB 1119, HB 1138, HB 1176, HB 1190, HCR 3040

REP. HEDSTROM, Chairman

REP. RIEHL MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

SIGNING OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS

THE CHIEF CLERK ANNOUNCED that the Speaker signed the following:

HB 1060, HB 1119, HB 1138, HB 1176, HB 1190, HCR 3040

ROY GILBREATH, Chief Clerk

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE
HOUSE CHAMBER

MADAM PRESIDENT: I have the honor to transmit herewith the following which the Speaker has signed and your signature is respectfully requested:

HB 1060, HB 1119, HB 1138, HB 1176, HB 1190, HCR 3040

ROY GILBREATH, Chief Clerk

MOTIONS

REP. KRETSCHMAR MOVED that the absent members be excused, which motion prevailed.

REP. KRETSCHMAR MOVED that the House be on the Fifth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Fifth order, the House be on the Ninth order of business, and at the conclusion of the

Ninth order, the House be on the Thirteenth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Thirteenth order, the House stand adjourned until 1:00 p.m., Thursday, January 31, 1985, which motion prevailed.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on State and Federal Government to which was referred HB 1129 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. MARTINSON, Chairman

HB 1129 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred HB 1149 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 7 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. CONMY, Chairman

HB 1149 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred HB 1151 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 8 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. CONMY, Chairman

HB 1151 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred HB 1152 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. CONMY, Chairman

HB 1152 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred HB 1155 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 11 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. CONMY, Chairman

HB 1155 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on House Appropriations to which was referred HB 1219 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 22 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 1, after the words "A BILL" delete the remainder of the bill and insert in lieu thereof the following: "for an Act to provide an appropriation for additional compensation to North Dakota state employees, excluding faculty and senior administrative staff at the institutions and agencies under the control of the state board of higher education, for the period beginning January 1, 1985, and ending June 30, 1985; and declaring an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. APPROPRIATION. The sums hereinafter listed, or so much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated out of the general fund and from special funds or moneys derived from federal funds or other income in the state treasury as indicated to the agencies and institutions of state government named herein for the purpose of providing additional compensation to employees of the various agencies and institutions named herein for the period beginning January 1, 1985, and ending June 30, 1985:

AGENCY OR INSTITUTEION	GENERAL FUND	SPECIAL FUNDS	TOTAL
State treasurer	\$ 4,210	\$	\$ 4,210
Tax commissioner	11,069		11,069
Director of institutions	5,437		5,437
Supreme court	14,219		14,219
District courts	24,744		24,744
Superintendent of public instruction	48,206		48,206
Division of independent study	13,689		13,689
Bismarck junior college	45,422		45,422
Lake Region community college	28,259		28,259
UND-Williston Center	15,936		15,936
University of North Dakota	556,455	98,154	654,609
Medical center		137,311	137,311
rehabilitation hospital			
University of North Dakota medical center	102,605	43,973	146,578
North Dakota state university	431,324		431,324
North Dakota state	1,685		1,685

university - state toxicologist			
Upper great plains transportation institute	842		842
State school of science	64,041	75,000	139,041
Dickinson state college		45,817	45,817
Mayville state college	33,145		33,145
Minot state college		102,731	102,731
Valley City state college	46,093		46,093
North Dakota forest service	5,745		5,745
North Dakota state university - Bottineau branch	12,332	9,042	21,374
Teachers' fund for retirement		795	795
Grafton state school	63,735		63,735
San Haven	18,471		18,471
Veterans' home		6,482	6,482
Department of veterans' affairs (postwar veterans' trust fund)		1,673	1,673
Department of human services	50,457	6,880	57,337
Aeronautics commission		125	125
State laboratories department	6,347		6,347
Housing finance agency		1,213	1,213
Job service		104,497	104,497
Workmen's compensation bureau		12,728	12,728
Highway patrol	42,133		42,133
Civil air patrol	836		836
State penitentiary	1,394		1,394
Economic development commission	4,391	1,882	6,273
Commissioner of agriculture	1,744	152	1,896
Extension division	38,750		38,750
Northern crops institute	842		842
Main experiment station	55,572	75,000	130,572
Dickinson experiment station	6,739		6,739
Central grasslands experiment station	1,685		1,685
Hettinger experiment station	2,527		2,527
Langdon experiment station	2,527		2,527
North central experiment station	2,527		2,527
Williston experiment station	3,370		3,370

Carrington experiment station	4,212	4,212
Agronomy seed farm	1,685	1,685
Land reclamation research center	17,690	17,690
Geological survey	18,401	18,401
Parks and recreation department	4,422	4,422
Total	\$ 1,773,927	\$ 2,539,370

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE INTENT. The amounts appropriated or authorized for expenditure in this Act are subject to the following provisions:

1. The amounts are intended to provide a one-time salary payment of \$360 and a \$60 increase in monthly compensation for the six-month period beginning January 1, 1985, and ending June 30, 1985, to eligible employees of all state agencies and institutions excluding faculty and senior administrative staff, but including persons employed by auxiliary enterprises at the institutions and agencies under the control of the state board of higher education.
2. The actual amount of increases paid the individual employees shall be determined by the director of the agency or institution in accordance, where applicable, with central personnel division classification and compensation plans, except that a director of an agency or institution may grant increases that result in an employee's salary level exceeding the maximum limit of the salary range for that employee's pay grade.
3. Compensation increases shall only be granted to employees who are employed by the state on the effective date of this Act and have been continuously employed by the state since July 1, 1984.
4. a. Employees who have received a compensation increase of \$60 or more per month effective April 1, 1984, or later are not eligible for the compensation increases provided herein.
 - b. Employees who have not received any compensation increase effective April 1, 1984, or later are eligible for the full \$60 per month increase and the \$360 one-time salary payment.

- c. Employees who have received an increase of less than \$60 per month effective April 1, 1984, or later are eligible for a monthly increase only up to the amount of the difference between the monthly increase received and \$60 per month, and are eligible for a one-time salary payment equal to \$360 less the additional compensation received between July 1, 1984, and December 31, 1984.
5. A compensation increase of up to the amounts provided shall only be granted when it is determined appropriate by the director of the agency or institution that an employee should receive such an increase.
6. The moneys herein appropriated shall be made available to the various agencies and institutions only after a determination by the director of the office of management and budget that such amounts are necessary to pay the amounts of additional compensation in addition to the amounts provided in appropriation acts passed by the forty-eighth legislative assembly.

SECTION 3. AUTHORIZATION. In addition to the amounts appropriated to the agencies and institutions in section 1 of this Act, the agencies and institutions listed below are authorized to provide the amounts shown for compensation increases authorized by this Act, pursuant to and within the limits of the agencies' and institutions' 1983-85 salaries and wages line item appropriations.

AGENCY OR INSTITUTION	GENERAL FUND	SPECIAL FUNDS
State printing	\$	\$ 139
Secretary of state	14,219	
Office of management and budget	14,568	
Central data processing		14,205
Attorney general	3,666	
Energy development impact office	348	349
Motor vehicle registrar		22,876
Public employees retirement board		5,855
Board of higher education	2,788	
Industrial school	3,415	
Commissioner of university and school lands		3,415
Library commission	3,680	
School for the deaf	7,221	
Board of vocational education	1,405	1,522
Department of health	16,927	15,624
State hospital	73,591	

Indian affairs commission	1,673	
Labor commissioner	2,509	
Public service commission	5,249	1,749
Department of banking and financial institutions	1,673	
Securities commissioner	934	
State laboratories department	5,000	
Bank of North Dakota		4,647
Parole and probation office	7,124	
Highway patrol	40,297	
Radio communications department	293	
Division of disaster emergency services	837	1,533
Penitentiary industries		836
Adjutant general	4,489	
Milk stabilization board		948
Sunflower council		836
Livestock sanitary board	84	
Seed department		3,750
Historical society	10,804	
Parks and recreation department	4,500	
Game and fish department		1,533
Water commission	15,251	
Highway department		150,487
Total	\$242,545	\$230,304

SECTION 4. LEGISLATIVE INTENT. Any agency or institution not included in this Act or has been appropriated or authorized an insufficient amount in sections 1 and 3 of this Act to provide compensation increases to all eligible employees is authorized to provide such increases within the limits of the agencies' and institutions' 1983-85 salaries and wages line item appropriations.

SECTION 5. EMERGENCY. This Act is hereby declared to be an emergency measure and is in effect from and after its passage and approval."

And renumber the lines and pages accordingly

REP. PETERSON, Chairman

HB 1219 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on State and Federal Government to which was referred HB 1286 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. MARTINSON, Chairman

HB 1286 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Industry, Business and Labor to which was referred HB 1337 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 1 NAY, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. KLOUBEC, Chairman

HB 1337 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on State and Federal Government to which was referred HB 1360 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 9 YEAS, 6 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. MARTINSON, Chairman

HB 1360 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Finance and Taxation to which was referred HB 1361 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 16 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. A. HAUSAUER, Chairman

HB 1361 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Industry, Business and Labor to which was referred HB 1368 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 13 YEAS, 1 NAY, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. KLOUBEC, Chairman

HB 1368 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred HB 1383 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. CONMY, Chairman

HB 1383 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Industry, Business and Labor to which was referred HB 1389 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 11 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. KLOUBEC, Chairman

HB 1389 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred HB 1401 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 11 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. CONMY, Chairman

HB 1401 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on State and Federal Government to which was referred HB 1411 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 26, delete the numeral "1989" and insert in lieu thereof the numeral "1999"

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. MARTINSON, Chairman

HB 1411 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Industry, Business and Labor to which was referred HB 1428 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 8 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 16, remove the overstrike over the word "~~Good~~"

On page 1, line 17, remove the overstrike over the word "~~Friday~~"

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. KLOUBEC, Chairman

HB 1428 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Industry, Business and Labor to which was referred HB 1441 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING

that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 2, line 5, overstrike the words "insured or"

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. KLOUBEC, Chairman

HB 1441 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Finance and Taxation to which was referred HB 1470 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 11 YEAS, 6 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. A. HAUSAUER, Chairman

HB 1470 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on State and Federal Government to which was referred HB 1482 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 8 YEAS, 6 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. MARTINSON, Chairman

HB 1482 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred HB 1487 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 10 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. CONMY, Chairman

HB 1487 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MR. SPEAKER: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred HB 1488 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. CONMY, Chairman

HB 1488 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

FIRST READING OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

Reps. Wald, Timm and Sens. Tallackson, Freborg introduced:

HCR 3045: A concurrent resolution urging Congress to review and revise the bankruptcy laws to provide creditors with more

protection from losses resulting from debtors filing for bankruptcy.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Reps. Shockman, Brokaw, Eckroth, Watne, R. Solberg introduced:

HCR 3046: A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Council to study the system of health care service delivery by physicians and hospitals, the reasons for the rapidly increasing costs of health care and health care insurance, and alternatives to contain those costs.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs.

FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

SB 2040: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 27-08.1-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to small claims court venue for collection of nonsufficient fund or no account checks.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

SB 2061: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 5-02-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the suspension or revocation of a retail liquor license for violation of the games of chance law.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

SB 2087: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 1-02-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to reconciliation of statutes passed during the same session.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

SB 2094: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 2-02-06 and a new subsection to section 2-06-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to power of certain airport operators and airport authorities to establish toll access roadways.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Transportation.

SB 2144: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 16.1-11-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the candidate's affidavit to place a name on the primary election ballot.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

SB 2173: A BILL for an Act to adopt the Uniform Fraudulent Transfer Act, relating to fraudulent property transfers; to amend and reenact section 13-01-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to creditor preferences; and to repeal sections 13-01-05, 13-01-06, 13-01-07, 13-01-08, 13-01-09, and chapter 13-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to fraudulent property transfers.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Industry, Business and Labor.

SB 2178: A BILL for an Act to adopt the Uniform Unclaimed Property Act, relating to the disposition of abandoned and unclaimed property in this state; to create and enact a new section to chapter 15-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to appointment of an administrator of this Act; to amend and reenact sections 6-07-46, 9-12-29, and subdivision v of subsection 1 of section 28-32-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the disposition of unclaimed moneys of an insolvent bank, the claim of moneys deposited by a debtor with the county treasurer when the creditor cannot be located, and exclusion from the Administrative Agencies Practice Act; to repeal chapter 47-30 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the disposition of abandoned and unclaimed property in this state; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Industry, Business and Labor.

SB 2198: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 61-04-24 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the forfeiture of water rights.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Natural Resources.

SB 2202: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 61-16.1-23 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to appeals from assessments of water resource boards.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Natural Resources.

SB 2233: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 54-17-07.7 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the granting to the North Dakota industrial commission, acting as the North Dakota housing finance agency, the authority not to require program restrictions necessary to the exemption from federal income taxes of the interest payable on its housing revenue bonds; and to declare an emergency.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

SB 2264: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 57-15-28 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to county emergency fund levies.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Political Subdivisions.

SB 2267: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 15-60-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to limitations

on the amount of loans received by school districts from the state school construction fund.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Education**.

SB 2268: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 11-19.1-15, 11-19.1-16, and 11-19.1-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the duties of coroners to notify relatives and fee responsibilities of the counties.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Political Subdivisions**.

SB 2286: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 57-24-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the county treasurer giving notice of a tax sale by mail.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Political Subdivisions**.

SB 2298: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 49-18-41 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to identification tags secured by motor carriers as evidence of receipt of certificate of public convenience.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Transportation**.

FIRST READING OF A SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION

SCR 4017: A concurrent resolution urging Congress and the Internal Revenue Service to remove the restrictions of the Tax Reform Act of 1984 upon farmers and small businessmen which require adequate contemporaneous records to substantiate the business purpose of travel deductions.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Agriculture**.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Kretschmar's motion.

ROY GILBREATH, Chief Clerk